EXHIBIT 34

AmTel Alabama Tariff





July 8, 2009

Secretary
Alabama Public Service Commission
P.O. Box 304260
Montgomery, Alabama 36130



Please find enclosed a check in the amount of 100.00, the original and ten (10) copies of the Application for Amended Certification, and the original and ten (10) copies of the Tariff for ATN, Inc., d/b/a Amtel.

Respectfully,

Gordon R. Reilly

Chief Operating Officer

38444 ATN, INC. 913 DILWORTH ST. ST. MARYS, GA 31558 (912) 673-6000 64-584-612 7/8/2009 PAY **100.00 TO THE Alabama Public Service Commission ORDER OF One Hundred and 00/100*** **DOLLARS** Alabama Public Service Commission Finance Section PO Box 304260 Montgomery, AL 36130-4260 MEMO Tariff

ATN, INC.

Alabama Public Service Commission Licenses & Fees

Alabama tariff

7/8/2009

38444

100.00

ALABAMA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION (APSC)

APPLICATION FOR AMENDED CERTIFICATION TO PROVIDE INMATE TELEPHONE SERVICE (IPS) IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA

This application form is to be used by currently certificated Customer Owned Coin Operated Telephone (COCOT) providers to obtain amended authority to provide Inmate Phone Service pursuant to APSC Docket 15957.

NAME OF COMPANY ATN, INC d/b/a AMTEL
CURRENT CERTIFICATE NUMBER U-4418
NAME ON CURRENT CERTIFICATE (If different than company name shown above
DATE OF APPLICATION JULY 8, 2009
COMPANY ADDRESS 913 DILWORTH STREET
ST MARY'S GEORGIA 31558
CONTACT PERSON GORDON R REILY PHONE (912-673-6016) FAX (912 673-6004 E-MAIL AMTELE ATMI. NET
CONTACT PERSON'S ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT FROM ADDRESS SHOWN ABOVE
I hereby request that my authority be expanded to include the ability to offer
automated-collect Inmate Phone Service (IPS) in The State of Alabama in accordance with the rules and regulations relating to automated-collect institutional service cited in Alabama Public Service Commission Telephone Rule T-15.1.
Signature of Applicant Sector R. Reitly
Date July 8, 2009

Verification

STATE OF	GEORGIA		COUNTY OF_	CAMBEN	
The above- nar	med Gordon	s R.	Reiwy		
stated in the fo	eared before me this oregoing application as as he/she verily bel	day and, nd any e	being first du	•	
WITNESS	my hand and notarial	seal, thi	s 7+ h_da	y of July	,20 <u>09</u>
My Comm	ission expires	Jan	29, 20	12	
Lisa	S. Wunte	v			
<u>Lisa</u>	. Hunter ped name of Notary Public		marrowania w ^a		ا ن المحادث

Filing Instructions

To apply for amended certificate to provide automated-collect Inmate Phone Service in the State of Alabama, submit the original and ten (10) copies of the completed and verified application for filing to the Alabama Public Service Commission at the following address:

Secretary Alabama Public Service Commission P.O. Box 304260 Montgomery, Alabama 36130

Filing Fee

Applicants must submit a check or money order for \$100.00 made payable to the Alabama Public Service Commission

TITLE SHEET TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF

OF

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St. St. Marys, Georgia 31558 (912) 673-6000 (800) 849-6081

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of services and facilities for Inmate Phone Service (IPS) by ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel, ("ATN") principal offices at 913 Dilworth St., St. Mary's, Georgia 31558. This tariff is on file with the Alabama Public Service Commission ("Commission"). Copies may also be inspected during normal business hours at the Company's principal place of business.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

CHECK SHEET

Pages listed below of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Original and revised pages as named below comprise all changes from the original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date of the bottom of this page.

<u>PAGE</u>	<u>REVISION</u>	<u>PAGE</u>	<u>REVISION</u>
1	Original	26	Original
2	Original	27	Original
3	Original	28	Original
4	Original	29	Original
5	Original	30	Original
6	Original	31	Original
7	Original	32	Original
8	Original	33	Original
9	Original	34	Original
10	Original	35	Original
11	Original		
12	Original		
13	Original		
14	Original		
15	Original		
16	Original		
17	Original		
18	Original		
19	Original		
20	Original		
21	Original		
22	Original		
23	Original		
24	Original		
25	Original		

NOTE: Future revisions to these original tariff pages shall include an updated Check Sheet. Such Check Sheet shall include an (*) beside the applicable page number and the caption Revised".

Issued: July 8, 2009

Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	age
Title Sheet	1
Check Sheet	2
Table of Contents	.3
Symbols Used to Denote Changes	.4
Tariff Format	5
General Description of Tariff and Territory Served	.6
Accessibility of Tariff	8
Section 1 - Definitions and Abbreviations	9
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations	15
Section 3 - Description of Services	28
Section 4 – Rates and Charges	31

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SYMBOLS

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

- (C) To Signify Change in Regulation
- (D) To Signify a Deletion
- (I) To Signify a Rate Increase
- (M) To Signify Text Moved from another Tariff Location
- (N) To Signify a New Rate or Regulation
- (R) To Signify a Rate Reduction
- (T) To Signify a Change in Text, but No Change in Rate or Regulation

In addition to symbols for changes, each provision or rate element changed will contain a vertical line which will clearly show the exact number of lines being changed.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

TARIFF FORMAT

- Page Numbering Page numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Pages are A. numbered sequentially. However, new pages are occasionally added to the tariff. When a new page is added between pages already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new page added between pages 4 and 5 would be 4.1.
- Page Revision Numbers Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each В. page. These numbers are used to determine the most current page version on file with the Commission. For example, the 4th revised Page 4 cancels the 3rd revised Page 4.
- C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are five levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding is subservient to its next higher level:

```
2
2.1
2.1.1
2.1.1.(A)
2.1.1.(A).1
2.1.1.(A).1.(a).
2.1.1.(A).1.(a).I.
2.1.1.(A).1.(a).I.(i).
2.1.1.(A).1.(a).I.(i).(1).
```

D. Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated check sheet accompanies the tariff filing. The check sheet lists the pages contained in the tariff, with a crossreference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, the check sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revision made in a given filing are designated by an (*). There will be no other symbols used on this sheet if these are the only changes made to it (i.e., the format, etc., remains the same just revised notation levels on some sheets). The tariff user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular sheet is the most current sheet on file with the Commission.

Effective: July 8, 2009 Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN. Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF TARIFF AND TERRITORY SERVED

This tariff contains the description of the services offered, the terms and conditions under which each of the services are provided and all effective rates and charges applicable to the furnishing of interexchange telecommunications services and operator services of ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel, to inmates of prisons, jails or other confinement institutions within the state of Alabama. Only those services, terms and conditions and rates and charges approved by the Alabama Public Service Commission and contained in this tariff may be provided to Customers within the State. Filed tariffs are binding on the Company and no deviation of any kind from the filed tariff is permitted.

The services offered by the Company subject to this tariff consist of furnishing Collect, Person to Person Collect Calls, Prepaid Collect Calls, and Debit Card Calls through store and forward technology incorporating an automated operator and the resale of transmission services of other carriers.

Because the services offered hereunder are provided to inmates of a correctional facility or similar institution, special stipulations may apply. These stipulations are designed to preserve the integrity and security of the facility, the safety of the public and to reduce fraud and harassment. When deemed appropriate by the facility administration, these include: providing outward only calls; providing 0+ Collect Calls only for local, intraLATA toll and interLATA toll calls and blocking access to all other types or forms of calls; blocking access to local Directory Assistance (411), long distance Directory Assistance (555-1212), 911 calls, toll free numbers including 1-800, 700, 900, 950, 10XXX and any other telephone numbers the facility administration directs; limiting hours during which telephone service is available to inmates; and/or limiting call duration to a time interval established by the facility administration.

Services furnished by the Company may be connected with services or facilities of other authorized Common Carriers and with private systems, subject to the technical limitations established by the Company. The services of the Company are not part of a joint undertaking with any other entity providing telecommunications channels, facilities or services, but do involve the resale of the Message Toll Services (MTS) and Wide Area Telecommunications Services (WATS) of underlying Common Carriers who may be subject to the jurisdiction of this Commission.

The rates and regulations contained in this tariff apply only to the services furnished by the Company and do not apply, unless otherwise specified, to the lines, facilities, or services provided by a local exchange telephone company or other Common Carrier for use in accessing the services of the Company.

Effective: July 8, 2009 Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF TARIFF AND TERRITORY SERVED, CONT.

The Company's obligation to furnish service hereunder is dependent upon its ability to secure and retain, without unreasonable expense, suitable facilities and contractual rights necessary for the provision of the service.

The Company's Collect Call, Prepaid Collect Call, Pin Debit Services, and Debit Card Services are offered for Customer use 24 hours a day, seven days a week to all valid terminating locations specified in this section.

Establishment of a Prepaid Account or Debit Account entitles the consumer to access the Carrier's network for a preset amount of usage. Usage will be debited from the available account balance in full-minute increments.

Balances in a Prepaid Account and/or a Debit Account are refundable to the Customer if the Customer elects to close the prepaid account, or if service is terminated for reasons outlined in this tariff. The account may be considered abandoned after a specified period of inactivity after which no remaining funds will be refunded.

Balances in a Debit Card account are not refundable and the Debit Card account will be closed after a specified period of inactivity.

Customers may increase the available usage balance within an account by making additional payments to the Company.

Effective: July 8, 2009 Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

ACCESSIBILITY OF TARIFF

This tariff is on file with the Alabama Public Service Commission and the Company's principal place of business:

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St. St. Marys, Georgia 31558

These tariffs are available for viewing, during normal business hours, at the Commission or ATN, Inc.'s principal place of business. Additionally, copies are available upon reasonable request, free of charge, by contacting the Company at 1 (800) 849-6081.

Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

St. Marys, Georgia 31558

Effective: July 8, 2009

Effective: July 8, 2009

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

"Access" as used in this tariff means an arrangement that connects the Customer's or IXC-Subscriber's telecommunications service to the Underlying Carrier's designated point of presence or network switching center.

"Access code" means a sequence of numbers that, when dialed, connects the caller to the carrier associated with that sequence.

"Access line" means an arrangement from a local exchange telephone company or other common carrier, which connects an inmate telephone to a switching center.

"Aggregator" means any person or entity that, in the ordinary course of its operations, makes telephones available to the public or to transient users of its premises for intrastate telephone calls including calls using an operator services provider; i.e., customers of an OSP. Aggregators include, but are not limited to, hotels, motels, hospitals, universities, airports, gas stations, and to the extent permitted by law, payphone service providers.

"Alabama Public Service Commission ("Commission")" means the regulatory body authorized by the Constitution of the State of Alabama and the laws of the State of Alabama promulgated by and enacted by the Governor of Alabama, which regulates certain public utilities.

"Answer supervision" means a network control signal sent from the terminating location to the originating location to inform the originating location that a call has been answered and a network control signal from the originating end to the terminating end to inform the terminating end that a calling party has hung up. In the public switched network, the answer supervision signal is used to start and stop billing for a call.

"ATN" is the abbreviated name of the company ATN, Inc., d/b/a Amtel., as referred to on the title page of this tariff.

"Authorization code" means any sequence of numbers that, when dialed, by a person, firm, corporation, or other entity, permits the authorized the user to connect to and utilize ATN's service network and services.

"Automated Call Processing System" refers to specialized equipment that controls the placement of collect calls, including the recording of billing information.

Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel

St. Marys, Georgia 31558

913 Dilworth St.

"Automated Phone Payment Processing Fee" means any undisclosed fee charged to a customer by a third party Phone Payment Processor when the customer chooses to make a payment using a credit card, check/debit card or check over the phone for an account with the provider.

"Billed Party" means the individual, firm or entity accepting a collect call and responsible for the payment of all applicable charges.

"Billing Limit" means a dollar value of accepted collect call charges beyond which is deemed to be an at-risk collection.

"Blocking" means a feature or capability of communications systems or networks that permits deliberate denial of access under certain specified conditions; for example, restricting a residential subscriber's ability to reach information services by blocking that subscriber's access to any phone number that begins with the digits "900".

"Brand" means the audible and distinct identification by the OSP to the consumer of the OSP pre-subscribed by the Aggregator.

"Call splashing" means the transfer of a telephone call from one OSP to another such provider in such a manner that the subsequent provider is unable or unwilling to determine the location of the origination of the call and, because of such inability or unwillingness, is prevented from billing the call on the basis of the actual originating location.

"Collect call" means a call for which the charge is billed to the destination or termination telephone number, not to the originating telephone number.

"Commission" means the Alabama Public Service Commission.

"Company" means the Reseller or OSP referred to on the title page of this tariff ATN, Inc. d/b/a AmTel, a Georgia Corporation, unless otherwise indicated by the context.

"Consumer" means any person initiating any intrastate telephone call using the assistance of a live or automated operator or any person receiving an intrastate telephone call handled by an OSP in which the called party will be paying for the service; i.e., the end-user of OSP-provided services or a called party of a collect call handled by an OSP.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Confinement Facility" means a place designated by law for the confinement of persons held in custody under process of law or under lawful arrest, including a facility for the detention of juveniles.

"Customer" means the party responsible for the payment of charges for calls placed using services of the carrier. For Collect Calls, the Customer is the responsible party who has accepted the call placed by the End User.

"Customer trouble report" means any oral or written report given to the Company's repair service or contact person by a Customer, Aggregator or Consumer relating to a defect or difficulty or dissatisfaction with the provision of the telecommunications service provided by the Company. Each trouble report shall count as a separate report regardless of whether subsequent reports relate to the same defect, difficulty or dissatisfaction with the provision of the Company's regulated services.

"Debit Card" or Debit Card Account means an account established by the inmate, the customer, or other authorized user, maintaining a prepaid balance from which charges are deducted on a per call basis.

"Delinquent" means a payment for a billing for services provided, which is not in dispute, where payment is not received on or before the due date as posted on the bill.

"Direct Dialed Calling Card Service" means a calling arrangement whereby end-users, through the use of a calling card, enter their billing information directly into the phone and completes the call without the assistance of a "live" operator.

"End-user" means inmates of correctional institutions or penal facilities as authorized by their institution to use such services. Responsibility for payment of End User's charges must be accepted by a third party (i.e. collect).

"Equal access" means a condition where the local exchange access service offered by a telephone company is made available in equal kind, quality and price to all long distance companies. Equal access also describes a condition where customers may choose for themselves the interexchange carrier to which their long distance calls are to be routed, using the same number of dialed digits regardless of which interexchange carrier is chosen.

"Equal access code" means an access code that allows the public to obtain access to the carrier associated with that code; i.e., 101xxxx.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Exchange" means a geographic area established and approved by the Commission for the administration of local telephone service in a specified area, which usually embraces a city, town, or village and its environs. It may consist of one or more central offices together with associated plant used in furnishing communication service in that area.

"Inmate Phone Service (IPS)" means a class of telecommunications service made available at an institution for the use by inmates in making outbound, automated-collect-only, prepaid or debit system calls. Call placement, recording and billing arrangements are performed without the assistance of a live operator.

"Inmate" means anyone of a group confined or occupying a single place or residence such as a jail, detention facility, prison or hospital.

"Institution" means any type of confinement or correctional facility, such as mental health facilities, prisons, jails, work farms or detention facilities.

"IntraLATA call" means any call, which is originated and terminated within the boundaries of the same LATA, regardless of whether such call crosses LATA boundaries prior to reaching its termination point.

"InterLATA call" means any call, which is originated in one LATA and terminated in another LATA.

"Interstate call" means any call, which is originated in one state and terminated within the boundaries of another state.

"Intrastate call" means any call that is originated and terminated within the boundaries of the State of Alabama, regardless of whether such call crosses state boundaries prior to reaching its termination point.

"IXC" means interexchange carrier or interexchange company, which is a carrier, or company authorized by the Commission to provide long distance communications services, but not local exchange services, within the State of Alabama.

"Holidays" means the holidays designated either by the Commission or by the Company as a legally recognized holiday, which will be rated at the lower night/weekend rates.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Joint Aggregator" describes a situation where more than one party exercises control over telephone equipment, whether through ownership of the equipment, control of access to the equipment or some other means. Each party is jointly responsible as an Aggregator under this tariff.

"LATA" means Local Access and Transport Area.

"LEC" means a local exchange company that is a company authorized by the Commission to provide local exchange service within the State of Alabama.

"OSP" means operator service provider, which is any common carrier that provides intrastate operator services or any other person or entity determined by the Commission to be providing operator services.

"Operator services" means any intrastate telecommunications service initiated from an Aggregator location that includes, as a component, any automatic or live assistance to a consumer to arrange for billing or completion, or both, of an intrastate telephone call through a method other than:

- (A) Automatic completion with billing to the telephone from which the call originated.
- (B) Completion through an access code used by the consumer, with billing to an account previously established with the carrier by the consumer.

"Person-to-person call" means a call, which is placed under the stipulation that the call party will speak only to a specific person, extension or department.

"Point of presence ("POP")" means the location where an IXC has transmission equipment in a service area that serves as, or relays calls to, the interexchange network.

"Prepaid account" means an account established by the inmate, the customer, or other authorized user, maintaining a prepaid balance from which charges are deducted on a per call basis.

"Reseller" means a Company offering telecommunications services to the public through the use of the facilities of an underlying carrier or a combination of its own facilities and the facilities of an underlying carrier for resale to the public for profit. A Customer who offers the service(s) it obtains from a Reseller to the public for profit shall also be deemed a Reseller.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Responsible party" means any person, firm, or corporation, or other entity to which the customer subscribed to business or residential service and as listed with the local or alternate exchange carrier. In the case of a minor child the responsible party is the resident parent or guardian.

"Service" means service in its broadest and most inclusive sense, and includes any and all acts done, rendered, or performed and any and all things furnished or supplied by a Reseller/OSP in the provision of regulated offerings to their Customers or Consumers.

"Subscriber" means the correctional or confinement institutions to which ATN, Inc., d/b/a Amtel, provides the services specified in this tariff.

"Surcharge" as used in this tariff, means any charge levied by ATN, Inc., d/b/a Amtel, to provide the services of handling a call, including the provision of call acceptance, validation, and billing of the call charges.

"Telecommunications service" means service provided by the Company including voice, data, and all other types of communications services, under the Company's tariffs on file with the Public Service Commission.

"Third-party billed call" means a billing arrangement which allows the Customer, Consumer or End-user to bill charges for an operator-assisted call to a telephone number which is different from the calling telephone number or the called telephone number.

"Underlying Carrier" means the provider of telecommunications services whose network is being utilized to transmit and receive the Customer's telecommunications traffic.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.1 - UNDERTAKING OF COMPANY

- 2.1.1 ATN's services and facilities are furnished to inmates of correctional institutions for communications originating and terminating within the State of Alabama.
- 2.1.2 ATN installs, operates, and maintains the communications services provided hereinunder in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this tariff. ATN may act as the Subscriber's agent for ordering access connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities, when authorized by the Subscriber, to allow connection of a Subscriber's location to the ATN network.
- 2.1.3 ATN's services and facilities are provided on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided, and are available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week.

2.2 - LIMITATIONS

- 2.2.1 Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and equipment, or both facilities and equipment, and subject to the provisions of this tariff.
- 2.2.2 ATN reserves the right to discontinue or limit service when necessitated by conditions beyond its control, or when the Subscriber or End User, as applicable, is using service in violation of provisions of this tariff, or in violation of the law.
- 2.2.3 The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its facilities when available, and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish connections.
- 2.2.4 All facilities provided under this tariff are directly or indirectly controlled by ATN and the Subscriber may not transfer or assign the use of service or facilities without the express written consent of the Company.
- 2.2.5 Prior written permission from the Company is required before any assignment or transfer. All regulations and conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to all such permitted assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions of service.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.3 - USE OF SERVICE

- 2.3.1. ATN as an Inmate Service Provider shall adhere to all requirements cited in Alabama Public Service Commission Telephone Rule T-15-1, Docket 15957.
- 2.3.2. Services provided under this tariff may be used for any lawful purpose for which the service is technically suited.
- 2.3.3. The Company's services may be used for any lawful purpose consistent with the transmission and switching parameters of the telecommunications facilities utilized in the provision of services.
- 2.3.4. The use of the Company's services to make calls which might reasonably be expected to frighten, abuse, torment, or harass another or in such a way as to unreasonably interfere with use by others is prohibited.
- 2.3.5. The use of the Company's services without payment for service or attempting to avoid payment for service is prohibited.
- 2.3.6. The Company's services are available for use twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week, except as set forth in this tariff.
- 2.3.7. The Company's services may be denied for nonpayment of charges or for other violations of this tariff.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.4 - LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY

- 2.4.1 The liability, if any, of ATN arising out of or in any way connected with any defect, error, omission, delay, interruption, suspension or other failure in connection with furnishing service or facilities shall, unless otherwise provided in the schedules, be in an amount not in excess of the charge for the service or facility involved for the period during which the defect, error, omission, delay, interruption, suspension or other failure continues.
- 2.4.2. The Company shall be indemnified and saved harmless by any Customer or by any other entity against claims for libel, slander or the infringement of copyright arising from the material transmitted over its services; and against all other claims arising out of any act or omission of a Customer or of any other entity in connection with services provided by the Company.
- 2.4.3. The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any entity furnishing facilities or services connected with or provided in conjunction with the services of the Company.
- 2.4.4. The Company shall not be liable for any personal injury or death of any person or persons, or for any loss or damage sustained by reason of acts, mistakes, omissions, errors or defects in providing its services, whatever shall be the cause and whether negligent or otherwise.
- 2.4.5. The Company shall not be liable for and shall be indemnified and saved harmless by any Customer or other entity from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits, or other action or any liability whatever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by any Customer or any other entity for any personal injury to, or death of, any person or persons, and for any loss, damage, defacement or destruction of the premises of any Customer or any other entity or any other property whether owned or controlled by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by any act or omission of the Customer or others or by any installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location or use of facilities of equipment provided by the Company.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

- 2.4.6 The Company shall not be liable for any failure of performance due to causes beyond its control including, without limitation, acts of God, fires, or other catastrophes, national emergencies, insurrections, riots or wars, terrorism, strikes, lockouts, work stoppages or other labor difficulties, and any law, order, regulation or other action of any governing authority or agency thereof.
- 2.4.7 No agent or employee of any other carrier shall be deemed to be an agent or employee of the Company.

2.5 - DEPOSITS AND INTEREST

- 2.5.1 The Company does not require deposits or advance payments from Customers for its services, except for Prepaid "Collect" Services or Debit Account Services as provided by this tariff.
- 2.5.2 The Company does not collect advance payments; however, it does offer a prepaid option for customers or billed parties who wish to maintain a prepaid account for services provided by the Company.

2.6 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CUSTOMER

- 2.6.1. The Customer is responsible for payment of applicable charges set forth in this tariff.
- 2.6.2. The Customer is responsible for compliance with applicable regulations set forth in this tariff.
- 2.6.3. The Customer is responsible for establishing its identity as often as necessary during the course of a call.
- 2.6.4. The Customer is responsible for identifying the station, party, or person with whom communication is desired and/or made at the called number.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

- 2.6.5 If a Customer presents an undue risk of nonpayment at any time, the Company may require that Customer pay its bills within a specified number of days and make such payments in cash or the equivalent of cash. In the case of any Customer who elects to post a deposit for any reason, including prepaid accounts, the Company may deduct any past due amounts, and any other unpaid charges from the deposit.
- 2.6.6 Customers with questions about invoices may contact the Company directly at 913 Dilworth St., St. Marys, Georgia 31558. If written notice of a dispute as to charges is not received by the Company within sixty (60) days of the date a bill is issued, such charges shall be deemed to be correct and binding on the Customer.
- 2.6.7. In the event the Company incurs fees or expenses, including attorney's fees, in collecting or attempting to collect, any charges owed the Company, the Customer will be liable to the Company for the payment of all such fees and expenses reasonably incurred.

2.7 - BILLING AND BILLING DISPUTES

- 2.7.1 The called party that accepts a collect call or prepaid call is responsible for payment of all charges for services.
- 2.7.2 All charges due by the Customer are payable to the Company or any agent duly authorized to receive such payments. The billing agent may be the Company, a local exchange telephone company, credit card Company, or other billing service. Terms of payment shall be according to the rules and regulations of the agent and subject to the rules of regulatory bodies having jurisdiction. Any objections to billed charges must be promptly reported to the Company or its billing agent. Adjustments to Customers' bills shall be made to the extent that circumstances exist which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.7.3 In the event of a dispute between the Customer and the Company regarding charges billed by the Company, the Company will investigate the particular case and report the results thereof to the Customer. During the period that the disputed amount is under investigation, the company will not pursue any collection procedures or assess late fees with regard to the disputed amount. The Customer shall be required to pay the undisputed part of the bill, and if not paid, the Company may discontinue service as set forth in Section 2.16 and 2.17.

In the event the disputed charges are not resolved, the Company shall inform the Customer or Consumer that the Customer or Consumer may utilize the complaint procedures of the Commission's Consumer Services Division. The Company shall provide the Customer or consumer with the following information:

Alabama Public Service Commission P.O. Box 991 Montgomery, Alabama 36101 800-392-8050

- 2.7.4 The Company reserves the right to assess a late payment fee of 1.5% per month on any past due balance if unpaid thirty (30) days following the date of the bill listing amounts owed by the Customer. A balance is considered overdue if unpaid fifteen (15) following the date the bill listing the amounts owed by the Customer. Any applicable late payment fees will be assessed according to the terms and conditions of the Company or its billing agent and pursuant to Alabama State law.
- 2.7.5 The Company reserves the right to assess a return check charge of \$25.00 whenever a check or draft presented for payment of service is not accepted by the institution upon which it is written. Any applicable return check charges will be assessed according to the terms and conditions of the Company or its billing agent and pursuant to Alabama State Law.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.8 - VALIDATION OF CREDIT

- 2.8.1 The Company reserves the right to validate the creditworthiness of Customers through available verification procedures and to establish a maximum predetermined credit amount. Where a requested billing method cannot be validated, the Company may refuse to provide service.
- 2.8.2 Services offered pursuant to this tariff are provided to inmates of confinement facilities, in accordance with institutionally authorized programs. The Company may request that facilities adopt, as part of the institutionally authorized program, terms that enable the Company to collect the charges for all inmate calls, including without limitation, the blocking of calls to certain telephone numbers when the amount charged to such telephone number (a) exceeds a predetermined amount, (b) becomes past due, or (c) is otherwise in violation of this tariff.

2.9 - TAXES

- 2.9.1 The Customer is responsible for payment of any sales, use, gross receipts, excise or other local, state and federal taxes, charges or assessments, however designated (excluding taxes on the Company's net income) imposed on or based upon the provision, sale or use of the Company's services.
- 2.9.2 All state and local sales taxes are listed as separate line items on the Customer's bill and are not included in the quoted rate(s).
- 2.9.3 Other taxes, charges and the regulatory assessment shall be identified in the aggregate on the Customer's bill and shall not be included in the quoted rate(s).
- 2.9.4 Such taxes, charges, and assessments shall be billed to the Customers receiving service(s) within the territorial limits of such state, county, city or other taxing authority. Such billing shall allocate the tax, charge and/or assessment among Customers uniformly on the basis of each Customer's monthly charges for the types of service made subject to such tax, charge and/or assessment.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.10 - EQUIPMENT

2.10.1 The Company's facilities and service(s) may be used with or terminated in Customer-provided terminal equipment or Customer-provided telecommunications systems. Such terminal equipment shall be furnished and maintained at the expense of the Customer. The Customer is responsible for all costs at its premises, including personnel, wiring, electrical power, and the like, incurred in the use of the equipment shall comply with the generally accepted minimum protective criteria standards of the telecommunications industry as endorsed by the Federal Communications Commission

2.11 - INSTALLATION AND TERMINATION

2.11.1 Service is installed upon mutual agreement between the Confinement Facility and the Company. The service agreement does not alter rates specified in this tariff.

2.12 - PAYMENT FOR SERVICE

- 2.12.1 All charges due by the Customer are payable to the Company or any agency duly authorized to receive such payments. The billing agency may be a LEC, inter-exchange carrier, credit card Company, or other billing service. The terms and conditions for billing, payment and collection, including without limitation, any late payment charge, specified in the LEC's local exchange service tariff shall apply to charges of the Company when the LEC serves as the billing agent for the Company or buys the Company's accounts receivables. Terms of payment shall be according to the rules and regulations of the agency, but must comply with the Commission's rules and regulations.
- 2.12.2 Any objection to billed charges must be reported within sixty (60) days of receipt to the Company or the Company's billing agent or the billed charges will be considered final.
- 2.12.3 Adjustments to the Customer's bills shall be made to the extent that circumstances exist which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.13 - RETURNED CHECK CHARGE

2.13.1 If a check offered by a Customer for payment of service provided is dishonored; a returned check charge shall be applied in the amount of \$25.00.

2.14 - CANCELLATION OF SERVICE BY CUSTOMER

2.14.1 The customer may cancel or refuse service by not accepting collect calls placed to his/her telephone number. Service may also be discontinued upon written or oral notice to the company. The Company shall hold the Customer responsible for payment of all bills for service furnished until the cancellation date specified by the Customer or until the date that the written cancellation notice is received, whichever is later.

2.15 - INTEREXCHANGE INTERCONNECTION FOR RESALE

2.15.1 Service(s) furnished by ATN may be connected with the services or facilities of an underlying carrier. Such service(s) or facilities, if used, are provided under the terms, rates and conditions of the underlying carrier. The Customer is responsible for all charges billed by the underlying carrier(s) for use in connection with the Company's service. Any special interface equipment or facilities necessary to achieve compatibility between carriers is the responsibility of the Subscriber.

2.16 - DENIAL OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE

- 2.16.1 Service will continue to be provided until canceled by the Customer, orally or in writing, or until disconnected by the Company as set forth below. The Company may render bills subsequent to the termination of service for charges incurred before termination.
- 2.16.2 The Company may refuse to provide service without prior notice when the called party refuses to accept the charges or has subscribed to billed number screening, prohibiting acceptance of such calls.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.17 - DISCONNECTION AND NOTICE

- 2.17.1 For nonpayment of a bill for services, the Company will provide Customer at least five (5) days written notice to the Customer of the Company's intent to discontinue service, except as noted in this tariff. Notice shall be mailed by the Company to the Customer's address. Notice shall be mailed by the Company to the Customer's address. Notice will be deemed given to the Customer two (2) days after mailing by the Company.
- 2.17.2 The Company shall not be required to give the written notice provided for in situations where the Company has evidence of fraudulent or illegal use of the Company's services, which if allowed to continue, would present a high risk of financial loss to the company. Services may be refused or terminated for any of the following reasons:
 - (A) Nonpayment of a bill within the period prescribed in the Company's tariff.
 - (B) Violation of or noncompliance with any provision of law, Commission rules and regulations or the Company's approved tariffs.
 - (C) Excessive or improper use of telecommunications services, or used in such manner as to interfere with reasonable service to other Customers.
 - (D) For Violation of any of the provisions of this tariff.
 - (E) By reason of any order or decision of a court, Public Service Commission, or Federal regulatory body or other governing authority prohibiting the Company from furnishing its services.
- 2.17.3 Company may discontinue service without notice for inmate collect calling in excess of the billed party's predetermined call limit as established by the Company.
- 2.17.4 Company may discontinue service without notice if billed party collect call records are returned from the billing aggregator or local exchange carrier as not billable, as bad debt, or as call records that have been written off by the local exchange carrier as not collectable, or are otherwise returned unpaid.
- 2.17.5 The Company may discontinue service without notice if any Prepaid customer fails to maintain a positive balance in their prepaid or debit card account sufficient to complete at a one (1) minute call to the least call cost destination.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.18 - RESTORATION OF SERVICE

- 2.18.1 If service has been discontinued for nonpayment or as otherwise provided herein and the Customer wishes it continued, service shall, at the Company's discretion, be restored when all past due amounts are paid or the event giving rise to the discontinuance (if other than nonpayment) is corrected.
- 2.18.2 Company may require a Customer to subscribe to a Prepaid account in order to continue inmate calling services, should such services have been discontinued for non-payment of any bill, or inmate collect calling in excess of the predetermined billed party's limit as established by the Company.

2.19 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR INMATE SERVICES

2.19.1 A number of special blocking and screening capabilities are available with institutional operator services provided by ATN. These capabilities allow Confinement Facilities to control Inmate access to telecommunications services, reduce fraudulent use of the Company's services, and eliminate harassing calls to persons outside the facility.

For services provided to Inmates of Confinement Facilities, the following special conditions apply:

- (a) At the request of the Confinement Facility, ATN may block inmate access to "800", "888", "950-XXXX", "101XXXX", numbers and other carriers or operator service providers.
- (b) At the request of the Confinement Facility, ATN may block inmate access to "911", "411", or local operators reached through "0-" dialing.
- (c) At the request of the Confinement Facility, ATN may block inmate access to specific telephone numbers.
- (d) Availability of ATN's services may be restricted by the Confinement Facility to certain hours and/or days.
- (e) No notices or signage concerning the Company's services will be posted with its instruments. Information concerning ATN's services is provided to the administration of each Confinement Facility where the Company's services are offered. Inmates may obtain information regarding rates and charges by requesting such information from the institution's administration.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

- (f) At the request of the Confinement Facility, ATN may place time limits on local and long distance calls placed using it services.
- (g) At the request of the Confinement Facility, equipment may be provided which permits monitoring of inmate calls by legally authorized government officials.
- (h) Calls to "900", "976" or other pay-per-call services are blocked by ATN.
- 2.19.2 Services and equipment provided to Inmates of Correctional Institutions may utilize specialized features to detect and terminate three way calls. The Customer will be responsible for all call costs for any call terminated early by three way call detection, including but not limited to Customer's call waiting notification features.
- 2.19.3 The services provided will utilize answer detection software and hardware capable of determining whether and when a call placed from a confinement facility has been accepted by the called party. The service will require an affirmative act by the called party (such as to press the number 0 on the telephone dial pad) to accept the call, and will provide a means by which the called party may deny acceptance of the call (such as to press the number 5 on the dial pad). In the event the called party makes no affirmative act to either accept or deny the call, the call will be terminated.

2.20 - PREPAYMENT REFUNDS

2.20.1 Customers who has established a prepaid or debit account through the company, may request a refund of any unused funds. Refunds of unused monies will be provided in not less than sixty (60) days from the date of the refund request. Prepaid accounts will be made inactive and considered expired after twelve months of inactivity.

2.21 – REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

2.21.1 ATN as an Inmate Phone Service provider shall submit to the Commission, upon request but routinely on an annual basis by inmate facility location, a written report of all assess lines and the number of telephone instruments used to provide Inmate Phone Service. The reporting period is as of the end of the month of May, annually. The month (June) that follows the reporting period.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

- 2.21.2 Upon request from the Commission, ATN shall, in a timely manner, and in accordance with confidentiality agreements between ATN and Commission staff as necessary; submit data requested by the Commission relating to its Alabama IPS operations, including but not limited to, revenue, expenses, and facility/usage data by inmate facility.
- 2.21.3 Upon request by the inmate facility administration, ATN shall promptly furnish call detail information where the provision of such information is not in violation of federal, state, or local laws, regulation or orders.

2.22 - INSPECTIONS AND SERVICE QUALITY

- 2.22.1 All telephone instruments and the facilities used for transmission of service are subject to periodic inspections to assure compliance with Commission requirements. Findings of non-compliance will be brought to the attention of the provider and the facility by letter. If violations are not corrected within thirty (30) days from the date of the letter, unless otherwise extended, the provider may be subject to additional Commission action up to and including revocation of the Commission issued Certificate authorizing the provider to offer IPS service in the State of Alabama.
- 2.22.2 ATN shall cooperate with the Commission to investigate complaints regarding transmission service quality, disconnects, and service related disputes from inmate facilities relative to the service provided by ATN.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

3.1 GENERAL

Calls are billed individually for each call placed through the Carrier. Charges are computed on an airline mileage basis as described in Section 3.4 of this tariff.

Rates vary by mileage band, time of day, day of week and call duration.

Customers are billed based on their use of ATN's local and long distance service. No installation charges or fixed monthly recurring charges apply.

3.2 - PRODUCT DESCRIPTIONS

All intrastate services are offered in conjunction with similar interstate services.

- 3.2.1 Inmate Operator Assisted Collect Service allows End Users to place collect calls through an automated call processing system. The call processing system prompts the call originator and the called party such that the call is completed without live operator assistance. Calls are placed collect to the called party. Collect Calling is a billing arrangement whereby the originating caller bills the charges for a call to the called party, provided that the called party agrees to accept the charges.
- 3.2.2 A Prepaid "Collect" Account or Debit Account preserves the features of a collect call, whereby the End Users place calls through an automated call processing system. The call processing system prompts the call originator and the called party such that the call is completed without operator assistance. The Customer may refuse to accept the call and no charges will accrue. Should the called party agree to accept the charges, the charges for the call will be deducted from the Customer prepaid account at the completion of the call. If the charges for the call exceed the available prepaid account balance, the automated equipment may terminate the call when the account remaining account balance will not cover the charges for one additional minute.
- 3.2.3 A Debit Card Account is an End User or Customer prepaid account wherein a specified value of call services is purchased by either the End User or Customer. Unlike a prepaid or advance payment account a Debit Card account balance is not held against future payment in that all inmate calling services are available for immediate consumption.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES, CONT.

3.3 - TIMING OF CALLS

- 3.3.1 Long distance usage charges are based on actual usage of ATN's network. Timing for automated collect calls begins when the called party accepts the charges for the call.
- 3.3.2 Timing of each Collect Call begins when the called party accepts responsibility for the charges and ends upon disconnection by either party, or hanging up. This will be determined by the standard industry method for ascertaining answer and disconnect, including hardware answer supervision in which the LEC sends a signal to the switch or the software utilizing audio tone detection, or as determined by standard industry methods generally in use for ascertaining answer and disconnect as determined by the underlying Common Carrier for the Company's services, where answer supervision is available.
- 3.3.3 Calls are billed in full minute increments.
- 3.3.4 There are no charges incurred or billed for calls that are not completed of accepted by the called party.

3.4 - CALCULATION OF DISTANCE ("V&H")

- 3.4.1 Usage charges for all mileage-sensitive products are based on the airline distance between serving wire centers associated with the originating and terminating points of the call.
- 3.4.2 The service wire centers of a call are determined by the area codes and exchanges of the origination and destination points.
- 3.4.3 The distance between the wire center of the Customer's equipment and that of the destination point is calculated by using the vertical ("V") and horizontal ("H") coordinates found in Bellcore's V&H Tape and NECA FCC Tariff No. 4.
 - Step 1 Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for the wire centers serving the Customer and the destination point.
 - Step 2 Obtain the difference between the "V coordinate of each of the wire centers. Obtain the difference between the "H" coordinates.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES, CONT.

- Step 3 Square the differences obtained in Step 2.
- Step 4 Add the squares of the "V difference and "H" difference obtained in Step 3.
- Step 5 Divide the sum of the square obtained in Step 4 by ten (10). Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction results from the division.
- Step 6 Obtain the square root of the whole number obtained in Step 5. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the distance between the wire centers.

Formula:

Mileage =
$$\sqrt{\frac{(V_1 - V_2)^2 + (H_1 - H_2)^2}{10}}$$

3.5 - TIME OF DAY RATE PERIODS

3.5.1 The following rate periods apply to all service offerings and, unless otherwise specified, applicable rate periods (Day, Evening, Night/Weekend) are indicated in the chart below:

	MON	TUE	WED	THUR	FRI	SAT	SUN
8:00 AM TO 5:00 PM*	DAYTIME RATE PERIOD						
5:00 PM TO 11:00 PM		EVENING RATE PERIOD (Non-Day)					EVE
11:00 PM* TO 8:00 AM*	NIGHT/WEEKEND RATE PERIOD (Non-Day)						

^{*} Up to, but not including

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 4 – RATES AND CHARGES.

4.1 - RATE SCHEDULES – INMATE OPERATOR ASSISTED SERVICE

- 4.1.1 The total charge for each operator assisted call consists of a usage charge, dependent on the duration, distance and time of day of the call, and an automated collect operator service charge.
- 4.1.2 The rates, charges and discounts as set forth below are applicable to local, intraLATA and interLATA Inmate Operator Assisted Service calls originating and terminating within the State of Alabama.

4.1.2.1 Local Calls

Local calls placed by Inmates of Confinement Facilities are billed at a rate of \$0.50 per call plus the following per call service charge:

Operator Service Charge, Per Local Station-to-Station Collect Call: \$2.25

4.1.2.2 IntraLATA Rates and Charges

Measured Charge – IntraLATA

Each Minute Day, Evening
Or Night/Weekend: \$0.3000

Additional Minute Day, Evening Or Night/Weekend: \$0.3000

Operator Service Charge – IntraLATA

Collect (Each Call): \$2.25

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

<u>SECTION 4 – RATES AND CHARGES, CONT.</u>

4.1.2.3 InterLATA Rates and Charges

Each Minute Day, Evening Or Night/Weekend: \$0.3000

Additional Minute Day, Evening Or Night/Weekend: \$0.3000

Operator Service Charge - IntraLATA

Collect (Each Call): \$2.25

4.1.2.4 Prepaid Inmate Calling (includes PIN Debit Calling)

Local Discount: 10%

IntraLATA/InterLata

Discount: 10%

Printed Statement Fee \$1.50

4.1.2.5 Debit Card Calling

Local Debit calls placed by Inmates of Confinement Facilities are billed at a flat rate of \$2.00 per call.

4.1.2.6 InterLATA Debit Card Rates and Charges

Measured Charge - IntraLATA / InterLATA

Each Minute: \$0.2500

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 4 – RATES AND CHARGES, CONT.

4.2 - MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL CHARGES

4.2.1. Billing Cost Recovery Fee

In order to partially offset increased expenses associated with billing calls via local exchange carriers, a non-discountable billing cost recovery fee will apply to each billing period in which local or long distance collect calls are billed through a customer's local exchange carrier. This fee will be charged only once per billing period regardless of the number of calls. The fee will not apply in any billing period in which no collect calls are billed via the customer's local exchange carrier or directly through the company. This fee does not apply to any prepaid services or debit calling services paid for by commercial credit card, check, money order, wire or commissary account.

4.2.1.1 LEC Billing Cost Recovery Fee, per month where applicable, up to \$2.49

4.2.1.2 Direct Billing Cost Recovery Fee, per month where applicable, up to \$1.50

4.2.2. Voice Verification Service

Voice Verification Service is an optional service that provides validation of the inmate's identity through voice verification technology for the purposes of improved security and the reduced potential of fraud and customer harassment by inmates. This charge apply to automated calls placed by inmates of correctional facilities when such calls are provided through the Company's own processing equipment. Where Voice Verification Service is specifically requested by correctional facilities, this charge applies in addition to all applicable institutional rates and charges as specified in this tariff.

4.2.2.1 Voice Verification Service Charge per call, where requested by the Correctional Facility for additional security * \$0.35

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

^{*} Voice Verification and RFID Verification Service would not be used concurrently.

SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES, CONT.

4.2.3. RFID Verification Service

RFID Verification Service is an optional service that provides validation of the inmate's identity through electronic verification technology for the purposes of improved security and the reduced potential of fraud and customer harassment by inmates. This charge apply to automated calls placed by inmates of correctional facilities when such calls are provided through the Company's own processing equipment. Where RFID Verification Service is specifically requested by correctional facilities, this charge applies in addition to all applicable institutional rates and charges as specified in this tariff.

4.2.3.1 RFID Verification Service Charge per call, where requested by the Correctional Facility for additional security * \$0.35

* RFID Verification and Voice Verification Service would not be used concurrently.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, CONT.

4.3 - PROMOTIONS

4.3.1. Comparable Pricing Promotion

The Company will, at its discretion, match certain standard or promotional offerings of other interexchange carriers or resellers in order to acquire new Confinement Facility contracts or retain existing Confinement Facility contracts. The Confinement Facility must demonstrate to the Company's satisfaction that 1) an alternative service offering is valid and currently available from a competing interexchange carrier or reseller and 2) the Confinement Facility intends to either enter into a contract with ATN or remain contracted with the competing interexchange carrier or reseller.

4.4 - CONTRACT SERVICES

At the option of the Company, service may be offered on a contract basis to meet specialized requirements of the Customer not contemplated in this tariff. The terms of each contract shall be mutually agreed upon between the Customer and Company and may include discounts off of rates contained herein, waiver of recurring or nonrecurring charges, charges for specially designed and constructed services not contained in the Company's general service offerings, or other customized features. The terms of the contract may be based partially or completely on the term and volume commitment, type of originating or terminating access, mixture of services for other distinguishing features. Service shall be available to all similarly situated Customers for a fixed period of time following the initial offering to the first contract Customer as specified in each individual contract.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

TITLE SHEET TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF

OF

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St. St. Marys, Georgia 31558 (912) 673-6000 (800) 849-6081

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of services and facilities for Inmate Phone Service (IPS) by ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel, ("ATN") principal offices at 913 Dilworth St., St. Mary's, Georgia 31558. This tariff is on file with the Alabama Public Service Commission ("Commission"). Copies may also be inspected during normal business hours at the Company's principal place of business.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

Effective: July 8, 2009

CHECK SHEET

Pages listed below of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the respective sheet(s). Original and revised pages as named below comprise all changes from the original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date of the bottom of this page.

<u>PAGE</u>	<u>REVISION</u>	<u>PAGE</u>	REVISION
1	Original	26	Original
2	Original	27	Original
3	Original	28	Original
4	Original	29	Original
5	Original	30	Original
6	Original	31	Original
7	Original	32	Original
8	Original	33	Original
9	Original	34	Original
10	Original	35	Original
11	Original		
12	Original		
13	Original		
14	Original		
15	Original		
16	Original		
17	Original		
18	Original		
19	Original		
20	Original		
21	Original		
22	Original		
23	Original		
24	Original		
25	Original		

NOTE: Future revisions to these original tariff pages shall include an updated Check Sheet. Such Check Sheet shall include an (*) beside the applicable page number and the caption "Revised".

Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pattle Sheet	Page	
The sheet	, 1	
Check Sheet	.2	
Table of Contents	.3	
Symbols Used to Denote Changes	.4	
Tariff Format	.5	
General Description of Tariff and Territory Served	.6	
Accessibility of Tariff	.8	
Section 1 - Definitions and Abbreviations	.9	
Section 2 - Rules and Regulations	5	
Section 3 - Description of Services	8	
Section 4 – Rates and Charges	1	

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

(T)

SYMBOLS

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

(C) To Signify Change in Regulation
(D) To Signify a Deletion
(I) To Signify a Rate Increase
(M) To Signify Text Moved from another Tariff Location
(N) To Signify a New Rate or Regulation
(R) To Signify a Rate Reduction

To Signify a Change in Text, but No Change in Rate or Regulation

In addition to symbols for changes, each provision or rate element changed will contain a vertical line which will clearly show the exact number of lines being changed.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

TARIFF FORMAT

- A. Page Numbering - Page numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Pages are numbered sequentially. However, new pages are occasionally added to the tariff. When a new page is added between pages already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new page added between pages 4 and 5 would be 4.1.
- Page Revision Numbers Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page. These numbers are used to determine the most current page version on file with the Commission. For example, the 4th revised Page 4 cancels the 3rd revised Page 4.
- C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are five levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding is subservient to its next higher level:

```
2
2.1
2.1.1
2.1.1.(A)
2.1.1.(A).1
2.1.1.(A).1.(a).
2.1.1.(A).1.(a).I.
2.1.1.(A).1.(a).I.(i).
2.1.1.(A).1.(a).I.(i).(1).
```

Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated check sheet D. accompanies the tariff filing. The check sheet lists the pages contained in the tariff, with a crossreference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, the check sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revision made in a given filing are designated by an (*). There will be no other symbols used on this sheet if these are the only changes made to it (i.e., the format, etc., remains the same just revised notation levels on some sheets). The tariff user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular sheet is the most current sheet on file with the Commission.

Effective: July 8, 2009 Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF TARIFF AND TERRITORY SERVED

This tariff contains the description of the services offered, the terms and conditions under which each of the services are provided and all effective rates and charges applicable to the furnishing of interexchange telecommunications services and operator services of ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel, to inmates of prisons, jails or other confinement institutions within the state of Alabama. Only those services, terms and conditions and rates and charges approved by the Alabama Public Service Commission and contained in this tariff may be provided to Customers within the State. Filed tariffs are binding on the Company and no deviation of any kind from the filed tariff is permitted.

The services offered by the Company subject to this tariff consist of furnishing Collect, Person to Person Collect Calls, Prepaid Collect Calls, and Debit Card Calls through store and forward technology incorporating an automated operator and the resale of transmission services of other carriers.

Because the services offered hereunder are provided to inmates of a correctional facility or similar institution, special stipulations may apply. These stipulations are designed to preserve the integrity and security of the facility, the safety of the public and to reduce fraud and harassment. When deemed appropriate by the facility administration, these include: providing outward only calls; providing 0+ Collect Calls only for local, intraLATA toll and interLATA toll calls and blocking access to all other types or forms of calls; blocking access to local Directory Assistance (411), long distance Directory Assistance (555-1212), 911 calls, toll free numbers including 1-800, 700, 900, 950, 10XXX and any other telephone numbers the facility administration directs; limiting hours during which telephone service is available to inmates; and/or limiting call duration to a time interval established by the facility administration.

Services furnished by the Company may be connected with services or facilities of other authorized Common Carriers and with private systems, subject to the technical limitations established by the Company. The services of the Company are not part of a joint undertaking with any other entity providing telecommunications channels, facilities or services, but do involve the resale of the Message Toll Services (MTS) and Wide Area Telecommunications Services (WATS) of underlying Common Carriers who may be subject to the jurisdiction of this Commission.

The rates and regulations contained in this tariff apply only to the services furnished by the Company and do not apply, unless otherwise specified, to the lines, facilities, or services provided by a local exchange telephone company or other Common Carrier for use in accessing the services of the Company.

Effective: July 8, 2009 Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF TARIFF AND TERRITORY SERVED, CONT.

The Company's obligation to furnish service hereunder is dependent upon its ability to secure and retain, without unreasonable expense, suitable facilities and contractual rights necessary for the provision of the service.

The Company's Collect Call, Prepaid Collect Call, Pin Debit Services, and Debit Card Services are offered for Customer use 24 hours a day, seven days a week to all valid terminating locations specified in this section.

Establishment of a Prepaid Account or Debit Account entitles the consumer to access the Carrier's network for a preset amount of usage. Usage will be debited from the available account balance in full-minute increments.

Balances in a Prepaid Account and/or a Debit Account are refundable to the Customer if the Customer elects to close the prepaid account, or if service is terminated for reasons outlined in this tariff. The account may be considered abandoned after a specified period of inactivity after which no remaining funds will be refunded.

Balances in a Debit Card account are not refundable and the Debit Card account will be closed after a specified period of inactivity.

Customers may increase the available usage balance within an account by making additional payments to the Company.

Effective: July 8, 2009 Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

ACCESSIBILITY OF TARIFF

This tariff is on file with the Alabama Public Service Commission and the Company's principal place of business:

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St. St. Marys, Georgia 31558

These tariffs are available for viewing, during normal business hours, at the Commission or ATN, Inc.'s principal place of business. Additionally, copies are available upon reasonable request, free of charge, by contacting the Company at 1 (800) 849-6081.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

"Access" as used in this tariff means an arrangement that connects the Customer's or IXC-Subscriber's telecommunications service to the Underlying Carrier's designated point of presence or network switching center.

"Access code" means a sequence of numbers that, when dialed, connects the caller to the carrier associated with that sequence.

"Access line" means an arrangement from a local exchange telephone company or other common carrier, which connects an inmate telephone to a switching center.

"Aggregator" means any person or entity that, in the ordinary course of its operations. makes telephones available to the public or to transient users of its premises for intrastate telephone calls including calls using an operator services provider; i.e., customers of an OSP. Aggregators include, but are not limited to, hotels, motels, hospitals, universities, airports, gas stations, and to the extent permitted by law, payphone service providers.

"Alabama Public Service Commission ("Commission")" means the regulatory body authorized by the Constitution of the State of Alabama and the laws of the State of Alabama promulgated by and enacted by the Governor of Alabama, which regulates certain public utilities.

"Answer supervision" means a network control signal sent from the terminating location to the originating location to inform the originating location that a call has been answered and a network control signal from the originating end to the terminating end to inform the terminating end that a calling party has hung up. In the public switched network, the answer supervision signal is used to start and stop billing for a call.

"ATN" is the abbreviated name of the company ATN, Inc., d/b/a Amtel., as referred to on the title page of this tariff.

"Authorization code" means any sequence of numbers that, when dialed, by a person, firm, corporation, or other entity, permits the authorized the user to connect to and utilize ATN's service network and services.

"Automated Call Processing System" refers to specialized equipment that controls the placement of collect calls, including the recording of billing information.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Automated Phone Payment Processing Fee" means any undisclosed fee charged to a customer by a third party Phone Payment Processor when the customer chooses to make a payment using a credit card, check/debit card or check over the phone for an account with the provider.

"Billed Party" means the individual, firm or entity accepting a collect call and responsible for the payment of all applicable charges.

"Billing Limit" means a dollar value of accepted collect call charges beyond which is deemed to be an at-risk collection.

"Blocking" means a feature or capability of communications systems or networks that permits deliberate denial of access under certain specified conditions; for example, restricting a residential subscriber's ability to reach information services by blocking that subscriber's access to any phone number that begins with the digits "900".

"Brand" means the audible and distinct identification by the OSP to the consumer of the OSP pre-subscribed by the Aggregator.

"Call splashing" means the transfer of a telephone call from one OSP to another such provider in such a manner that the subsequent provider is unable or unwilling to determine the location of the origination of the call and, because of such inability or unwillingness, is prevented from billing the call on the basis of the actual originating location.

"Collect call" means a call for which the charge is billed to the destination or termination telephone number, not to the originating telephone number.

"Commission" means the Alabama Public Service Commission.

"Company" means the Reseller or OSP referred to on the title page of this tariff ATN, Inc. d/b/a AmTel, a Georgia Corporation, unless otherwise indicated by the context.

"Consumer" means any person initiating any intrastate telephone call using the assistance of a live or automated operator or any person receiving an intrastate telephone call handled by an OSP in which the called party will be paying for the service; i.e., the end-user of OSP-provided services or a called party of a collect call handled by an OSP.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Confinement Facility" means a place designated by law for the confinement of persons held in custody under process of law or under lawful arrest, including a facility for the detention of juveniles.

"Customer" means the party responsible for the payment of charges for calls placed using services of the carrier. For Collect Calls, the Customer is the responsible party who has accepted the call placed by the End User.

"Customer trouble report" means any oral or written report given to the Company's repair service or contact person by a Customer, Aggregator or Consumer relating to a defect or difficulty or dissatisfaction with the provision of the telecommunications service provided by the Company. Each trouble report shall count as a separate report regardless of whether subsequent reports relate to the same defect, difficulty or dissatisfaction with the provision of the Company's regulated services.

"Debit Card" or Debit Card Account means an account established by the inmate, the customer, or other authorized user, maintaining a prepaid balance from which charges are deducted on a per call basis.

"Delinquent" means a payment for a billing for services provided, which is not in dispute, where payment is not received on or before the due date as posted on the bill.

"Direct Dialed Calling Card Service" means a calling arrangement whereby end-users, through the use of a calling card, enter their billing information directly into the phone and completes the call without the assistance of a "live" operator.

"End-user" means inmates of correctional institutions or penal facilities as authorized by their institution to use such services. Responsibility for payment of End User's charges must be accepted by a third party (i.e. collect).

"Equal access" means a condition where the local exchange access service offered by a telephone company is made available in equal kind, quality and price to all long distance companies. Equal access also describes a condition where customers may choose for themselves the interexchange carrier to which their long distance calls are to be routed, using the same number of dialed digits regardless of which interexchange carrier is chosen.

"Equal access code" means an access code that allows the public to obtain access to the carrier associated with that code; i.e., 101xxxx.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Exchange" means a geographic area established and approved by the Commission for the administration of local telephone service in a specified area, which usually embraces a city, town, or village and its environs. It may consist of one or more central offices together with associated plant used in furnishing communication service in that area.

"Inmate Phone Service (IPS)" means a class of telecommunications service made available at an institution for the use by inmates in making outbound, automated-collect-only, prepaid or debit system calls. Call placement, recording and billing arrangements are performed without the assistance of a live operator.

"Inmate" means anyone of a group confined or occupying a single place or residence such as a jail, detention facility, prison or hospital.

"Institution" means any type of confinement or correctional facility, such as mental health facilities, prisons, jails, work farms or detention facilities.

"IntraLATA call" means any call, which is originated and terminated within the boundaries of the same LATA, regardless of whether such call crosses LATA boundaries prior to reaching its termination point.

"InterLATA call" means any call, which is originated in one LATA and terminated in another LATA.

"Interstate call" means any call, which is originated in one state and terminated within the boundaries of another state.

"Intrastate call" means any call that is originated and terminated within the boundaries of the State of Alabama, regardless of whether such call crosses state boundaries prior to reaching its termination point.

"IXC" means interexchange carrier or interexchange company, which is a carrier, or company authorized by the Commission to provide long distance communications services, but not local exchange services, within the State of Alabama.

"Holidays" means the holidays designated either by the Commission or by the Company as a legally recognized holiday, which will be rated at the lower night/weekend rates.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Joint Aggregator" describes a situation where more than one party exercises control over telephone equipment, whether through ownership of the equipment, control of access to the equipment or some other means. Each party is jointly responsible as an Aggregator under this tariff.

"LATA" means Local Access and Transport Area.

"LEC" means a local exchange company that is a company authorized by the Commission to provide local exchange service within the State of Alabama.

"OSP" means operator service provider, which is any common carrier that provides intrastate operator services or any other person or entity determined by the Commission to be providing operator services.

"Operator services" means any intrastate telecommunications service initiated from an Aggregator location that includes, as a component, any automatic or live assistance to a consumer to arrange for billing or completion, or both, of an intrastate telephone call through a method other than:

- (A) Automatic completion with billing to the telephone from which the call originated.
- (B) Completion through an access code used by the consumer, with billing to an account previously established with the carrier by the consumer.

"Person-to-person call" means a call, which is placed under the stipulation that the call party will speak only to a specific person, extension or department.

"Point of presence ("POP")" means the location where an IXC has transmission equipment in a service area that serves as, or relays calls to, the interexchange network.

"Prepaid account" means an account established by the inmate, the customer, or other authorized user, maintaining a prepaid balance from which charges are deducted on a per call basis.

"Reseller" means a Company offering telecommunications services to the public through the use of the facilities of an underlying carrier or a combination of its own facilities and the facilities of an underlying carrier for resale to the public for profit. A Customer who offers the service(s) it obtains from a Reseller to the public for profit shall also be deemed a Reseller.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

"Responsible party" means any person, firm, or corporation, or other entity to which the customer subscribed to business or residential service and as listed with the local or alternate exchange carrier. In the case of a minor child the responsible party is the resident parent or guardian.

"Service" means service in its broadest and most inclusive sense, and includes any and all acts done, rendered, or performed and any and all things furnished or supplied by a Reseller/OSP in the provision of regulated offerings to their Customers or Consumers.

"Subscriber" means the correctional or confinement institutions to which ATN, Inc., d/b/a Amtel, provides the services specified in this tariff.

"Surcharge" as used in this tariff, means any charge levied by ATN, Inc., d/b/a Amtel, to provide the services of handling a call, including the provision of call acceptance, validation, and billing of the call charges.

"Telecommunications service" means service provided by the Company including voice, data, and all other types of communications services, under the Company's tariffs on file with the Public Service Commission.

"Third-party billed call" means a billing arrangement which allows the Customer, Consumer or End-user to bill charges for an operator-assisted call to a telephone number which is different from the calling telephone number or the called telephone number.

"Underlying Carrier" means the provider of telecommunications services whose network is being utilized to transmit and receive the Customer's telecommunications traffic.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.1 - UNDERTAKING OF COMPANY

- 2.1.1 ATN's services and facilities are furnished to inmates of correctional institutions for communications originating and terminating within the State of Alabama.
- 2.1.2 ATN installs, operates, and maintains the communications services provided hereinunder in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this tariff. ATN may act as the Subscriber's agent for ordering access connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities, when authorized by the Subscriber, to allow connection of a Subscriber's location to the ATN network.
- 2.1.3 ATN's services and facilities are provided on a monthly basis unless otherwise provided, and are available twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week.

2.2 - LIMITATIONS

- 2.2.1 Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and equipment, or both facilities and equipment, and subject to the provisions of this tariff.
- 2.2.2 ATN reserves the right to discontinue or limit service when necessitated by conditions beyond its control, or when the Subscriber or End User, as applicable, is using service in violation of provisions of this tariff, or in violation of the law.
- 2.2.3 The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its facilities when available, and will not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish connections.
- 2.2.4 All facilities provided under this tariff are directly or indirectly controlled by ATN and the Subscriber may not transfer or assign the use of service or facilities without the express written consent of the Company.
- 2.2.5 Prior written permission from the Company is required before any assignment or transfer. All regulations and conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to all such permitted assignees or transferees, as well as all conditions of service.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.3 - USE OF SERVICE

- 2.3.1. ATN as an Inmate Service Provider shall adhere to all requirements cited in Alabama Public Service Commission Telephone Rule T-15-1, Docket 15957.
- 2.3.2. Services provided under this tariff may be used for any lawful purpose for which the service is technically suited.
- 2.3.3. The Company's services may be used for any lawful purpose consistent with the transmission and switching parameters of the telecommunications facilities utilized in the provision of services.
- 2.3.4. The use of the Company's services to make calls which might reasonably be expected to frighten, abuse, torment, or harass another or in such a way as to unreasonably interfere with use by others is prohibited.
- 2.3.5. The use of the Company's services without payment for service or attempting to avoid payment for service is prohibited.
- 2.3.6. The Company's services are available for use twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week, except as set forth in this tariff.
- 2.3.7. The Company's services may be denied for nonpayment of charges or for other violations of this tariff.

Issued: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

St. Marys, Georgia 31558

Effective: July 8, 2009

2.4 - LIABILITIES OF THE COMPANY

- 2.4.1 The liability, if any, of ATN arising out of or in any way connected with any defect, error, omission, delay, interruption, suspension or other failure in connection with furnishing service or facilities shall, unless otherwise provided in the schedules, be in an amount not in excess of the charge for the service or facility involved for the period during which the defect, error, omission, delay, interruption, suspension or other failure continues.
- 2.4.2. The Company shall be indemnified and saved harmless by any Customer or by any other entity against claims for libel, slander or the infringement of copyright arising from the material transmitted over its services; and against all other claims arising out of any act or omission of a Customer or of any other entity in connection with services provided by the Company.
- 2.4.3. The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any entity furnishing facilities or services connected with or provided in conjunction with the services of the Company.
- 2.4.4. The Company shall not be liable for any personal injury or death of any person or persons, or for any loss or damage sustained by reason of acts, mistakes, omissions, errors or defects in providing its services, whatever shall be the cause and whether negligent or otherwise.
- 2.4.5. The Company shall not be liable for and shall be indemnified and saved harmless by any Customer or other entity from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits, or other action or any liability whatever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by any Customer or any other entity for any personal injury to, or death of, any person or persons, and for any loss, damage, defacement or destruction of the premises of any Customer or any other entity or any other property whether owned or controlled by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by any act or omission of the Customer or others or by any installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location or use of facilities of equipment provided by the Company.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

- 2.4.6 The Company shall not be liable for any failure of performance due to causes beyond its control including, without limitation, acts of God, fires, or other catastrophes, national emergencies, insurrections, riots or wars, terrorism, strikes, lockouts, work stoppages or other labor difficulties, and any law, order, regulation or other action of any governing authority or agency thereof.
- 2.4.7 No agent or employee of any other carrier shall be deemed to be an agent or employee of the Company.

2.5 - DEPOSITS AND INTEREST

- 2.5.1 The Company does not require deposits or advance payments from Customers for its services, except for Prepaid "Collect" Services or Debit Account Services as provided by this tariff.
- 2.5.2 The Company does not collect advance payments; however, it does offer a prepaid option for customers or billed parties who wish to maintain a prepaid account for services provided by the Company.

2.6 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CUSTOMER

- 2.6.1. The Customer is responsible for payment of applicable charges set forth in this tariff.
- 2.6.2. The Customer is responsible for compliance with applicable regulations set forth in this tariff.
- 2.6.3. The Customer is responsible for establishing its identity as often as necessary during the course of a call.
- 2.6.4. The Customer is responsible for identifying the station, party, or person with whom communication is desired and/or made at the called number.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

- 2.6.5 If a Customer presents an undue risk of nonpayment at any time, the Company may require that Customer pay its bills within a specified number of days and make such payments in cash or the equivalent of cash. In the case of any Customer who elects to post a deposit for any reason, including prepaid accounts, the Company may deduct any past due amounts, and any other unpaid charges from the deposit.
- 2.6.6 Customers with questions about invoices may contact the Company directly at 913 Dilworth St., St. Marys, Georgia 31558. If written notice of a dispute as to charges is not received by the Company within sixty (60) days of the date a bill is issued, such charges shall be deemed to be correct and binding on the Customer.
- 2.6.7. In the event the Company incurs fees or expenses, including attorney's fees, in collecting or attempting to collect, any charges owed the Company, the Customer will be liable to the Company for the payment of all such fees and expenses reasonably incurred.

2.7 - BILLING AND BILLING DISPUTES

- 2.7.1 The called party that accepts a collect call or prepaid call is responsible for payment of all charges for services.
- 2.7.2 All charges due by the Customer are payable to the Company or any agent duly authorized to receive such payments. The billing agent may be the Company, a local exchange telephone company, credit card Company, or other billing service. Terms of payment shall be according to the rules and regulations of the agent and subject to the rules of regulatory bodies having jurisdiction. Any objections to billed charges must be promptly reported to the Company or its billing agent. Adjustments to Customers' bills shall be made to the extent that circumstances exist which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.7.3 In the event of a dispute between the Customer and the Company regarding charges billed by the Company, the Company will investigate the particular case and report the results thereof to the Customer. During the period that the disputed amount is under investigation, the company will not pursue any collection procedures or assess late fees with regard to the disputed amount. The Customer shall be required to pay the undisputed part of the bill, and if not paid, the Company may discontinue service as set forth in Section 2.16 and 2.17.

In the event the disputed charges are not resolved, the Company shall inform the Customer or Consumer that the Customer or Consumer may utilize the complaint procedures of the Commission's Consumer Services Division. The Company shall provide the Customer or consumer with the following information:

Alabama Public Service Commission P.O. Box 991 Montgomery, Alabama 36101 800-392-8050

- 2.7.4 The Company reserves the right to assess a late payment fee of 1.5% per month on any past due balance if unpaid thirty (30) days following the date of the bill listing amounts owed by the Customer. A balance is considered overdue if unpaid fifteen (15) following the date the bill listing the amounts owed by the Customer. Any applicable late payment fees will be assessed according to the terms and conditions of the Company or its billing agent and pursuant to Alabama State law.
- 2.7.5 The Company reserves the right to assess a return check charge of \$25.00 whenever a check or draft presented for payment of service is not accepted by the institution upon which it is written. Any applicable return check charges will be assessed according to the terms and conditions of the Company or its billing agent and pursuant to Alabama State Law.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.8 - VALIDATION OF CREDIT

- 2.8.1 The Company reserves the right to validate the creditworthiness of Customers through available verification procedures and to establish a maximum predetermined credit amount. Where a requested billing method cannot be validated, the Company may refuse to provide service.
- 2.8.2 Services offered pursuant to this tariff are provided to inmates of confinement facilities, in accordance with institutionally authorized programs. The Company may request that facilities adopt, as part of the institutionally authorized program, terms that enable the Company to collect the charges for all inmate calls, including without limitation, the blocking of calls to certain telephone numbers when the amount charged to such telephone number (a) exceeds a predetermined amount, (b) becomes past due, or (c) is otherwise in violation of this tariff.

2.9 - TAXES

- 2.9.1 The Customer is responsible for payment of any sales, use, gross receipts, excise or other local, state and federal taxes, charges or assessments, however designated (excluding taxes on the Company's net income) imposed on or based upon the provision, sale or use of the Company's services.
- 2.9.2 All state and local sales taxes are listed as separate line items on the Customer's bill and are not included in the quoted rate(s).
- 2.9.3 Other taxes, charges and the regulatory assessment shall be identified in the aggregate on the Customer's bill and shall not be included in the quoted rate(s).
- 2.9.4 Such taxes, charges, and assessments shall be billed to the Customers receiving service(s) within the territorial limits of such state, county, city or other taxing authority. Such billing shall allocate the tax, charge and/or assessment among Customers uniformly on the basis of each Customer's monthly charges for the types of service made subject to such tax, charge and/or assessment.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.10 - EQUIPMENT

2.10.1 The Company's facilities and service(s) may be used with or terminated in Customer-provided terminal equipment or Customer-provided telecommunications systems. Such terminal equipment shall be furnished and maintained at the expense of the Customer. The Customer is responsible for all costs at its premises, including personnel, wiring, electrical power, and the like, incurred in the use of the equipment shall comply with the generally accepted minimum protective criteria standards of the telecommunications industry as endorsed by the Federal Communications Commission

2.11 - INSTALLATION AND TERMINATION

2.11.1 Service is installed upon mutual agreement between the Confinement Facility and the Company. The service agreement does not alter rates specified in this tariff.

2.12 - PAYMENT FOR SERVICE

- 2.12.1 All charges due by the Customer are payable to the Company or any agency duly authorized to receive such payments. The billing agency may be a LEC, inter-exchange carrier, credit card Company, or other billing service. The terms and conditions for billing, payment and collection, including without limitation, any late payment charge, specified in the LEC's local exchange service tariff shall apply to charges of the Company when the LEC serves as the billing agent for the Company or buys the Company's accounts receivables. Terms of payment shall be according to the rules and regulations of the agency, but must comply with the Commission's rules and regulations.
- 2.12.2 Any objection to billed charges must be reported within sixty (60) days of receipt to the Company or the Company's billing agent or the billed charges will be considered final.
- 2.12.3 Adjustments to the Customer's bills shall be made to the extent that circumstances exist which reasonably indicate that such changes are appropriate.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.13 - RETURNED CHECK CHARGE

2.13.1 If a check offered by a Customer for payment of service provided is dishonored; a returned check charge shall be applied in the amount of \$25.00.

2.14 - CANCELLATION OF SERVICE BY CUSTOMER

2.14.1 The customer may cancel or refuse service by not accepting collect calls placed to his/her telephone number. Service may also be discontinued upon written or oral notice to the company. The Company shall hold the Customer responsible for payment of all bills for service furnished until the cancellation date specified by the Customer or until the date that the written cancellation notice is received, whichever is later.

2.15 - INTEREXCHANGE INTERCONNECTION FOR RESALE

2.15.1 Service(s) furnished by ATN may be connected with the services or facilities of an underlying carrier. Such service(s) or facilities, if used, are provided under the terms, rates and conditions of the underlying carrier. The Customer is responsible for all charges billed by the underlying carrier(s) for use in connection with the Company's service. Any special interface equipment or facilities necessary to achieve compatibility between carriers is the responsibility of the Subscriber.

2.16 - DENIAL OR TERMINATION OF SERVICE

- 2.16.1 Service will continue to be provided until canceled by the Customer, orally or in writing, or until disconnected by the Company as set forth below. The Company may render bills subsequent to the termination of service for charges incurred before termination.
- 2.16.2 The Company may refuse to provide service without prior notice when the called party refuses to accept the charges or has subscribed to billed number screening, prohibiting acceptance of such calls.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.17 - DISCONNECTION AND NOTICE

- 2.17.1 For nonpayment of a bill for services, the Company will provide Customer at least five (5) days written notice to the Customer of the Company's intent to discontinue service, except as noted in this tariff. Notice shall be mailed by the Company to the Customer's address. Notice shall be mailed by the Company to the Customer's address. Notice will be deemed given to the Customer two (2) days after mailing by the Company.
- 2.17.2 The Company shall not be required to give the written notice provided for in situations where the Company has evidence of fraudulent or illegal use of the Company's services, which if allowed to continue, would present a high risk of financial loss to the company. Services may be refused or terminated for any of the following reasons:
 - (A) Nonpayment of a bill within the period prescribed in the Company's tariff.
 - (B) Violation of or noncompliance with any provision of law, Commission rules and regulations or the Company's approved tariffs.
 - (C) Excessive or improper use of telecommunications services, or used in such manner as to interfere with reasonable service to other Customers.
 - (D) For Violation of any of the provisions of this tariff.
 - (E) By reason of any order or decision of a court, Public Service Commission, or Federal regulatory body or other governing authority prohibiting the Company from furnishing its services.
- 2.17.3 Company may discontinue service without notice for inmate collect calling in excess of the billed party's predetermined call limit as established by the Company.
- 2.17.4 Company may discontinue service without notice if billed party collect call records are returned from the billing aggregator or local exchange carrier as not billable, as bad debt, or as call records that have been written off by the local exchange carrier as not collectable, or are otherwise returned unpaid.
- 2.17.5 The Company may discontinue service without notice if any Prepaid customer fails to maintain a positive balance in their prepaid or debit card account sufficient to complete at a one (1) minute call to the least call cost destination.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

2.18 - RESTORATION OF SERVICE

- 2.18.1 If service has been discontinued for nonpayment or as otherwise provided herein and the Customer wishes it continued, service shall, at the Company's discretion, be restored when all past due amounts are paid or the event giving rise to the discontinuance (if other than nonpayment) is corrected.
- 2.18.2 Company may require a Customer to subscribe to a Prepaid account in order to continue inmate calling services, should such services have been discontinued for non-payment of any bill, or inmate collect calling in excess of the predetermined billed party's limit as established by the Company.

2.19 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR INMATE SERVICES

2.19.1 A number of special blocking and screening capabilities are available with institutional operator services provided by ATN. These capabilities allow Confinement Facilities to control Inmate access to telecommunications services, reduce fraudulent use of the Company's services, and eliminate harassing calls to persons outside the facility.

For services provided to Inmates of Confinement Facilities, the following special conditions apply:

- (a) At the request of the Confinement Facility, ATN may block inmate access to "800", "888", "950-XXXX", "101XXXX", numbers and other carriers or operator service providers.
- (b) At the request of the Confinement Facility, ATN may block inmate access to "911", "411", or local operators reached through "0-" dialing.
- (c) At the request of the Confinement Facility, ATN may block inmate access to specific telephone numbers.
- (d) Availability of ATN's services may be restricted by the Confinement Facility to certain hours and/or days.
- (e) No notices or signage concerning the Company's services will be posted with its instruments. Information concerning ATN's services is provided to the administration of each Confinement Facility where the Company's services are offered. Inmates may obtain information regarding rates and charges by requesting such information from the institution's administration.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

- (f) At the request of the Confinement Facility, ATN may place time limits on local and long distance calls placed using it services.
- (g) At the request of the Confinement Facility, equipment may be provided which permits monitoring of inmate calls by legally authorized government officials.
- (h) Calls to "900", "976" or other pay-per-call services are blocked by ATN.
- 2.19.2 Services and equipment provided to Inmates of Correctional Institutions may utilize specialized features to detect and terminate three way calls. The Customer will be responsible for all call costs for any call terminated early by three way call detection, including but not limited to Customer's call waiting notification features.
- 2.19.3 The services provided will utilize answer detection software and hardware capable of determining whether and when a call placed from a confinement facility has been accepted by the called party. The service will require an affirmative act by the called party (such as to press the number 0 on the telephone dial pad) to accept the call, and will provide a means by which the called party may deny acceptance of the call (such as to press the number 5 on the dial pad). In the event the called party makes no affirmative act to either accept or deny the call, the call will be terminated.

2.20 - PREPAYMENT REFUNDS

2.20.1 Customers who has established a prepaid or debit account through the company, may request a refund of any unused funds. Refunds of unused monies will be provided in not less than sixty (60) days from the date of the refund request. Prepaid accounts will be made inactive and considered expired after twelve months of inactivity.

2.21 – REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

2.21.1 ATN as an Inmate Phone Service provider shall submit to the Commission, upon request but routinely on an annual basis by inmate facility location, a written report of all assess lines and the number of telephone instruments used to provide Inmate Phone Service. The reporting period is as of the end of the month of May, annually. The month (June) that follows the reporting period.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

- 2.21.2 Upon request from the Commission, ATN shall, in a timely manner, and in accordance with confidentiality agreements between ATN and Commission staff as necessary; submit data requested by the Commission relating to its Alabama IPS operations, including but not limited to, revenue, expenses, and facility/usage data by inmate facility.
- 2.21.3 Upon request by the inmate facility administration, ATN shall promptly furnish call detail information where the provision of such information is not in violation of federal, state, or local laws, regulation or orders.

2.22 - INSPECTIONS AND SERVICE QUALITY

- 2.22.1 All telephone instruments and the facilities used for transmission of service are subject to periodic inspections to assure compliance with Commission requirements. Findings of non-compliance will be brought to the attention of the provider and the facility by letter. If violations are not corrected within thirty (30) days from the date of the letter, unless otherwise extended, the provider may be subject to additional Commission action up to and including revocation of the Commission issued Certificate authorizing the provider to offer IPS service in the State of Alabama.
- 2.22.2 ATN shall cooperate with the Commission to investigate complaints regarding transmission service quality, disconnects, and service related disputes from inmate facilities relative to the service provided by ATN.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

3.1 GENERAL

Calls are billed individually for each call placed through the Carrier. Charges are computed on an airline mileage basis as described in Section 3.4 of this tariff.

Rates vary by mileage band, time of day, day of week and call duration.

Customers are billed based on their use of ATN's local and long distance service. No installation charges or fixed monthly recurring charges apply.

3.2 - PRODUCT DESCRIPTIONS

All intrastate services are offered in conjunction with similar interstate services.

- 3.2.1 Inmate Operator Assisted Collect Service allows End Users to place collect calls through an automated call processing system. The call processing system prompts the call originator and the called party such that the call is completed without live operator assistance. Calls are placed collect to the called party. Collect Calling is a billing arrangement whereby the originating caller bills the charges for a call to the called party, provided that the called party agrees to accept the charges.
- 3.2.2 A Prepaid "Collect" Account or Debit Account preserves the features of a collect call, whereby the End Users place calls through an automated call processing system. The call processing system prompts the call originator and the called party such that the call is completed without operator assistance. The Customer may refuse to accept the call and no charges will accrue. Should the called party agree to accept the charges, the charges for the call will be deducted from the Customer prepaid account at the completion of the call. If the charges for the call exceed the available prepaid account balance, the automated equipment may terminate the call when the account remaining account balance will not cover the charges for one additional minute.
- 3.2.3 A Debit Card Account is an End User or Customer prepaid account wherein a specified value of call services is purchased by either the End User or Customer. Unlike a prepaid or advance payment account a Debit Card account balance is not held against future payment in that all inmate calling services are available for immediate consumption.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

913 Dilworth St.

<u>SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES, CONT.</u>

3.3 - TIMING OF CALLS

- 3.3.1 Long distance usage charges are based on actual usage of ATN's network. Timing for automated collect calls begins when the called party accepts the charges for the call.
- 3.3.2 Timing of each Collect Call begins when the called party accepts responsibility for the charges and ends upon disconnection by either party, or hanging up. This will be determined by the standard industry method for ascertaining answer and disconnect, including hardware answer supervision in which the LEC sends a signal to the switch or the software utilizing audio tone detection, or as determined by standard industry methods generally in use for ascertaining answer and disconnect as determined by the underlying Common Carrier for the Company's services, where answer supervision is available.
- 3.3.3 Calls are billed in full minute increments.
- 3.3.4 There are no charges incurred or billed for calls that are not completed of accepted by the called party.

3.4 - CALCULATION OF DISTANCE ("V&H")

- 3.4.1 Usage charges for all mileage-sensitive products are based on the airline distance between serving wire centers associated with the originating and terminating points of the call.
- 3.4.2 The service wire centers of a call are determined by the area codes and exchanges of the origination and destination points.
- 3.4.3 The distance between the wire center of the Customer's equipment and that of the destination point is calculated by using the vertical ("V") and horizontal ("H") coordinates found in Bellcore's V&H Tape and NECA FCC Tariff No. 4.
 - Step 1 Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for the wire centers serving the Customer and the destination point.
 - Step 2 Obtain the difference between the "V coordinate of each of the wire centers. Obtain the difference between the "H" coordinates.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES, CONT.

- Step 3 Square the differences obtained in Step 2.
- Step 4 Add the squares of the "V difference and "H" difference obtained in Step 3.
- Step 5 Divide the sum of the square obtained in Step 4 by ten (10). Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction results from the division.
- Step 6 Obtain the square root of the whole number obtained in Step 5. Round to the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the distance between the wire centers.

Formula:

Mileage =
$$\sqrt{\frac{(V_1 - V_2)^2 + (H_1 - H_2)^2}{10}}$$

3.5 - TIME OF DAY RATE PERIODS

3.5.1 The following rate periods apply to all service offerings and, unless otherwise specified, applicable rate periods (Day, Evening, Night/Weekend) are indicated in the chart below:

	MON	TUE	WED	THUR	FRI	SAT	SUN	
8:00 AM TO 5:00 PM*	DAYTIME RATE PERIOD							
5:00 PM TO 11:00 PM	EVENING RATE PERIOD EVE (Non-Day)							
11:00 PM* TO 8:00 AM*	NIGHT/WEEKEND RATE PERIOD (Non-Day)							

^{*} Up to, but not including

Issued: July 8, 2009

Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 4 – RATES AND CHARGES.

4.1 - RATE SCHEDULES – INMATE OPERATOR ASSISTED SERVICE

- 4.1.1 The total charge for each operator assisted call consists of a usage charge, dependent on the duration, distance and time of day of the call, and an automated collect operator service charge.
- 4.1.2 The rates, charges and discounts as set forth below are applicable to local, intraLATA and interLATA Inmate Operator Assisted Service calls originating and terminating within the State of Alabama.

4.1.2.1 Local Calls

Local calls placed by Inmates of Confinement Facilities are billed at a rate of \$0.50 per call plus the following per call service charge:

Operator Service Charge, Per Local Station-to-Station Collect Call: \$2.25

4.1.2.2 IntraLATA Rates and Charges

Measured Charge – IntraLATA

Each Minute Day, Evening
Or Night/Weekend: \$0.3000

Additional Minute Day, Evening Or Night/Weekend: \$0.3000

Operator Service Charge – IntraLATA

Collect (Each Call): \$2.25

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

<u>SECTION 4 – RATES AND CHARGES, CONT.</u>

4.1.2.3 InterLATA Rates and Charges

Each Minute Day, Evening Or Night/Weekend: \$0.3000

Additional Minute Day, Evening Or Night/Weekend: \$0.3000

Operator Service Charge – IntraLATA

Collect (Each Call): \$2.25

4.1.2.4 Prepaid Inmate Calling (includes PIN Debit Calling)

Local Discount: 10%

IntraLATA/InterLata

Discount: 10%

Printed Statement Fee \$1.50

4.1.2.5 Debit Card Calling

Local Debit calls placed by Inmates of Confinement Facilities are billed at a flat rate of \$2.00 per call.

4.1.2.6 InterLATA Debit Card Rates and Charges

Measured Charge – IntraLATA / InterLATA

Each Minute: \$0.2500

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 4 – RATES AND CHARGES, CONT.

4.2 – MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL CHARGES

4.2.1. Billing Cost Recovery Fee

In order to partially offset increased expenses associated with billing calls via local exchange carriers, a non-discountable billing cost recovery fee will apply to each billing period in which local or long distance collect calls are billed through a customer's local exchange carrier. This fee will be charged only once per billing period regardless of the number of calls. The fee will not apply in any billing period in which no collect calls are billed via the customer's local exchange carrier or directly through the company. This fee does not apply to any prepaid services or debit calling services paid for by commercial credit card, check, money order, wire or commissary account.

4.2.1.1 LEC Billing Cost Recovery Fee, per month where applicable, up to \$2.49

4.2.1.2 Direct Billing Cost Recovery Fee, per month where applicable, up to \$1.50

4.2.2. Voice Verification Service

Voice Verification Service is an optional service that provides validation of the inmate's identity through voice verification technology for the purposes of improved security and the reduced potential of fraud and customer harassment by inmates. This charge apply to automated calls placed by inmates of correctional facilities when such calls are provided through the Company's own processing equipment. Where Voice Verification Service is specifically requested by correctional facilities, this charge applies in addition to all applicable institutional rates and charges as specified in this tariff.

4.2.2.1 Voice Verification Service Charge per call, where requested by the Correctional Facility for additional security * \$0.35

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

^{*} Voice Verification and RFID Verification Service would not be used concurrently.

SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES, CONT.

4.2.3. RFID Verification Service

RFID Verification Service is an optional service that provides validation of the inmate's identity through electronic verification technology for the purposes of improved security and the reduced potential of fraud and customer harassment by inmates. This charge apply to automated calls placed by inmates of correctional facilities when such calls are provided through the Company's own processing equipment. Where RFID Verification Service is specifically requested by correctional facilities, this charge applies in addition to all applicable institutional rates and charges as specified in this tariff.

4.2.3.1 RFID Verification Service Charge per call, where requested by the Correctional Facility for additional security * \$0.35

* RFID Verification and Voice Verification Service would not be used concurrently.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE AND RATES, CONT.

4.3 - PROMOTIONS

4.3.1. Comparable Pricing Promotion

The Company will, at its discretion, match certain standard or promotional offerings of other interexchange carriers or resellers in order to acquire new Confinement Facility contracts or retain existing Confinement Facility contracts. The Confinement Facility must demonstrate to the Company's satisfaction that 1) an alternative service offering is valid and currently available from a competing interexchange carrier or reseller and 2) the Confinement Facility intends to either enter into a contract with ATN or remain contracted with the competing interexchange carrier or reseller.

4.4 - CONTRACT SERVICES

At the option of the Company, service may be offered on a contract basis to meet specialized requirements of the Customer not contemplated in this tariff. The terms of each contract shall be mutually agreed upon between the Customer and Company and may include discounts off of rates contained herein, waiver of recurring or nonrecurring charges, charges for specially designed and constructed services not contained in the Company's general service offerings, or other customized features. The terms of the contract may be based partially or completely on the term and volume commitment, type of originating or terminating access, mixture of services for other distinguishing features. Service shall be available to all similarly situated Customers for a fixed period of time following the initial offering to the first contract Customer as specified in each individual contract.

Issued: July 8, 2009 Effective: July 8, 2009

Issued By: Gordon R. Reilly, Chief Operating Officer

ATN, Inc. d/b/a Amtel 913 Dilworth St.